10: 38:19 AM

CALL TO ORDER

Co-Chair

VEMBERS PRESENT

HOUSE FI NANCE COWM TTEE
FI RST SPECI AL SESSI ON
April 29, 2015
10: 38 a. m

Neuman called the House Finance Committee neeting
to order at 10:

38 a.m

Representative
Representati ve
Representati ve
Representative
Representati ve
Representati ve
Representative
Representati ve
Representati ve
Representative

VEMBERS ABSENT

Mar k Neuman, Co-Chair

St eve Thonpson, Co-Chair
Dan Saddl er, Vice-Chair
Bryce Edgnon

Les Gara

Lynn Gattis

David Guttenberg
Scott Kawasaki
Lance Pruitt
Tamm e W1 son

Representati ve Cathy Minoz
ALSO PRESENT
Pete Ecklund, Staff, Representative WMark Neuman; David
Teal , Director, Legi sl ative Fi nance Di vi si on;
Representative Cathy Tilton.
SUMVARY
HB 1001  APPROP: OPER BUDGET/ LOANS/ FUNDS/ AM APPRO
HB 1001 was HEARD and HELD in committee for
further consideration.
10: 38: 36 AM
Co- Chair Neuman di scussed the agenda for the neeting.

House Fi nance Committee 1

04/ 29/ 15 10:38 A M



#hb1001
HOUSE BI LL NO. 1001

"An Act neking appropriations for the operating and
| oan program expenses of state governnment and for

certain pr ogr ans, capitalizing funds, maki ng
reappropriations, nmaking capital appropriations, and
maki ng appropriations wunder art. 1X  sec. 17(c),

Constitution of the State of Al aska, from the
constitutional budget reserve fund; and providing for
an effective date.™

10: 38: 56 AM

Co- Chair Neunman relayed that he did not plan to report the
bill fromcomrttee that day.

Co- Chair Thonmpson MOWED to ADOPT the proposed conmttee
substitute for HB 1001, Wrk Draft 29-GH1318\W (Wall ace,
4/ 28/ 15). There being NO OBJECTIQN, it was so ordered.

10: 39: 33 AM

PETE ECKLUND, STAFF, REPRESENTATIVE MARK NEUMAN, expl ai ned
the changes in the Conmittee Substitute (CS). He
communi cated that the Wrk Draft was a sinplified version
of the governor's bill. He explained that the CS reflected
the differences and additions between the conference
committee operating budget bill passed by the |egislature
and the bill introduced by the governor the previous day.
He pointed to two one-page reports from the Legislative
Finance Division (LFD) titled "2015 Legislature - Operating
Budget Agency Summary - FY16 Conference Structure" (copy on
file). The first report pertained to unrestricted general
funds (UGF); the first colum titled "GovSpecial T" showed
that the governor's bill was $54, 954,500 UG- different from
the conference commttee bill. He furthered that the totals
in colum 4 matched the totals in colum 1, neaning that
the CS before the commttee included all of the governor's
changes from the conference conmttee bill. Section 1 of
the CS contained the majority of the differences from the
governor's bill.

Co- Chair Neuman noted that Representative Pruitt had joined
t he neeting.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 2 04/ 29/ 15 10:38 A M



M. Ecklund continued to speak to the changes in the CS. He
explained that Section 1 included various additions from
recently passed conference conmttee substitute. There were
various additions in different departnents, which were

listed in the first four pages of the bill. He pointed to
pages 3 and 4 and noted that the governor's intention was
to fund the 2.5 percent increase to the cost of |iving

al l omance (COLA) for unionized enployees on July 1, but not
for non-unionized enployees. He |ooked at pages 5 through
11 that included "fund roll-ups" (all of the wvarious
fundi ng sources for Section 1 of the bill).

10: 43: 09 AM

M. Ecklund pointed to page 12, Section 4, which included
all transactions the governor wanted to see for Medicaid
expansion. Pages 13 and 14 included fund roll-ups for

Section 4. The |anguage section of the bill began on page
15 of the bill. He detailed that the governor wanted to
fully fund the Base Student Allocation (BSA), which would
be a $16.5 million increase from the conference comittee
bill. Additionally, the governor wanted to use $118 mllion
from the Instate Natural Gas Pipeline Fund to help fund
public education; however, the conference comittee

substitute used $157 mllion from the fund. Page 15,
Section 8 addressed salary and benefit adjustnents,
including enployee <contracts and COLA for unionized
enpl oyees. Page 16, Section 9 included a new Constitutional
Budget Reserve (CBR) provisions that would include CBR
access votes for FY 15 and FY 16.

10:45: 07 AM

Co-Chair Neuman noted that Vice-Chair Saddler had joined
t he neeting.

Representative Gara comented that the governor was trying
to nove the legislature forward to achieve a budget. He
believed sonme of the itens included in the governor's bill
represented placeholders that the governor understood the
| egislature nmay nove around. He believed it was a good
effort on the governor's part.

Co-Chair Neuman remarked that the CS | ooked better than the
original version of the bill due to its shortened |ength
(18 pages down from 77). He wanted to ensure that the
docunent was clear for the public.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 3 04/ 29/ 15 10:38 A M



Representative Gattis noted that she had been receiving
many emails related to fully funding education. She asked
for clarity on what full funding would | ook Iike.

M. Ecklund answered that the statutory BSA for FY 16 was
$5,880. He detailed that when projections for student
counts were nultiplied by the fornula, the conference
cormittee report had been $16.5 mnmillion less than the
proj ected anmount. The CS would fund the BSA at 100 percent
of the projected anopunt.

Representative Gattis remarked that people had different
views on what fully funding education neant. She thanked
M. Ecklund for the clarification.

Representative WIson asked about Section 7. She remarked
on the fund transfer change from $157 mllion to $118
mllion from the Instate Natural Gas Pipeline Fund. She
wondered if the remai nder would conme from general funds.

M. Ecklund replied in the affirmative. He pointed to an
estimated $1,006,027,900 that would conme from the genera

fund (page 15, line 8). He noted that the general fund
figure in the conference committee  Dbill had been
approxi mately $95 m llion.

Representative WIlson referred to Section 8 related to
salary and benefit adjustnments. She asked for verification
that the COLA costs would cone from general funds. M.
Ecklund replied in the affirmative; the dollar amunt was
i ncl uded on page 4 of the CS

10: 48: 43 AM

M. Ecklund clarified that the total dollar amount it would
take to fund the wunionized and nonunionized COLA was
$56, 386, 100 (page 4, line 6). The cost to cover
nonuni oni zed enpl oyees was $21,018,500 (page 4, line 8).
The cost to cover unionized enployees could be calcul ated
by subtracting the nonunionized figure from the total,
which was roughly $35 million in total funds. He pointed
page 5, line 28 that included the UG- portion needed to
fund the union contracts [$16, 122, 600].

Representative WIson remarked that she had been receiving
emails asking the legislature to fund the operating budget.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 4 04/ 29/ 15 10:38 A M



She noted that Section 9 addressed the CBR and other funds
that were not dedicated, but may have been created for
specific purposes (e.g. H gher Education Investnent Fund).
She wondered how nuch funding was available in these other
funds for the legislature to use towards the budget (not
counting Al aska Permanent Fund reserves) if it could not
access the CBR

M. Ecklund asked for clarification on the fiscal year
Representative WIl son was speaking to.

Representative WIlson clarified she was interested in FY
16. She believed that forward funds for education had taken
care of FY 15 and that a CBR vote only pertained to FY 16.
She reiterated her previous question.

M. Ecklund replied that the FY 16 spring forecast was
somewhere around $2.2 billion. He deferred the question to
M. Teal.

DAVI D TEAL, DI RECTOR, LEG SLATIVE FINANCE DI VISION, replied
that there was approximately $2.2 billion in revenue for FY
16 with a $3.2 billion deficit. He detailed funds that
could be used including the Power Cost Equalization Fund
(approximately $1 billion) and the H gher Education
| nvestment Fund (approxinmately $450 nmillion to $460
mllion). He continued that the other remaining funds each
i ncluded less than $50 nmillion (conpiled together the funds
may be $200 mllion). He postulated that there may be

approximately $1.6 billion in various funds and accounts
that could be wused, which would leave a $1.6 billion
shortfall.

Representative WIlson noted that there were different
options for funding. She stated taking $1.6 billion in
addition to what had already been taken was an extrene
anount. However, she wanted people to understand that it
was an opti on.

10: 53: 13 AM

Representative Gara stated that the governor had filed a
pl acehol der budget for the legislature to work on. He
believed the governor's direction was for the legislature
to work together to conme up with a budget that people could
accept. He noted that it would include things that sone
people may not like on one side or the other. He stated

House Fi nance Conmmittee 5 04/ 29/ 15 10:38 A M



that from the Mnority's standpoint there was no interest
in shutting down governnent. He enphasized that the goa
was to work together to nove forward on a budget that
wor ked for education and for the public. He stressed that
he was not interested in wusing Al aska Permanent Fund
ear ni ngs.

Representati ve Edgnon hoped the neeting would be the |ast
one for a while on the current subject. He wanted clarity
on how much noney was avail able for the budget and how | ong
state governnent could be funded in the event the CBR vote
was not achi eved.

M. Teal stated that there was $2.2 billion in revenue with
a $3.2 billion deficit; there was nowhere near enough noney
to get through the year. He detailed that the $2.2 billion
was not available all at once at the beginning of the year;
it came in throughout the year. The cash fl ow problem could
be sonewhat resolved to sone extent by issuing revenue
anticipation notes or borrow ng. He comunicated that it
would be difficult to issue notes exceeding the expected
$2.2 billion in revenue. He relayed that any borrowed nobney
woul d have to be repaid fairly quickly; therefore, the rea
i ssue was cash flow. According to his discussions with the
Department of Revenue (DOR) there should be sufficient cash
to get the state through Septenber (possibly through
Cctober and Novenmber wth extraordinary measures). He
bel i eved Septenber was a far as the funding would go.

10: 56: 34 AM

Representative Edgnon referred to the $1.6 billion
available in the various funds including the PCE Fund and
the H gher Education Investnent Fund. He stressed that
drai ning the PCE account would not happen if it were up to
him He asked for verification that use of the funds would
require appropriation authority.

M. Teal answered in the affirmative. He el aborated that if

the legislature passed an appropriations bill that took
money from the Public Education Fund and the Higher
Educati on Fund, it woul d I ncrease cash flow Dby

approximately $1.5 billion, which would get the state
t hrough January [2016] or so. He believed DOR and the
Depart ment of Adm ni stration ( DOA) were working on
contingency plans to see how governnent would be operated
if a CBR vote was not obtai ned.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 6 04/ 29/ 15 10:38 A M



Representative WIlson clarified that she had not been
speaki ng about using Alaska Permanent Fund earnings. She
asked for verification that the l|egislature would have to
pass legislation to access other funds such as the PCE
fund. She thought all funds could be tapped wth the
exception of the CBR and Al aska Permanent Fund reserves.

M. Teal replied that the funds (the Al aska Permanent Fund
Reserve Account, the Hi gher Education Investnent Fund, and
the PCE Fund) could be tapped with an appropriation. He
el aborated that the noney could be accessed with a sinple
majority vote, whereas access to the CBR required a super-
majority vote [three-quarters]. The funds would provide an
additional $1.5 billion or so. He relayed that the Al aska
Per manent Fund account would also require a sinple majority
vote and would conpletely fill the deficit.

10: 59: 24 AM

Representative WI1son asked for clarification. She asked
for verification that the other non-dedicated funds would
be available for funding the operating budget if the
| egi sl ature passed an operating budget. She understood that
the funds would not be sufficient and would |eave the
budget approximately $1.6 billion short. She nade it clear
that the funds could be tapped if the legislature did not
cone to an agreenent.

M. Teal replied that the funds could be tapped with an
appropriation; the accounts were not dedicated, but were
considered restricted. He detailed that the accounts were
not swept into the CBR at the end of the year because they
were classified as the PCE Endownrent Fund and the Hi gher
Educati on Endownent Fund. Although the accounts were sub-
funds of the general fund they were classified as
restrict ed. A general fund appropriation would not
necessarily allow spending from the funds wthout a
specific appropriation putting the noney back into the
general fund.

Co-Chair Neuman rephrased that none of the funds could be
appropriated unless the |egislature passed an appropriation
bill that spent the funds.

M. Teal believed the statement was correct. However, DOR
and DOA were working to figure out which funds could be

House Fi nance Conmmittee 7 04/ 29/ 15 10:38 A M



borrowed from and spent wthout an appropriation. He
clarified that budgeting and accounting were different. He
noted that LFD | ooked at funds from a budgeting
perspective, whereas DOR and DOA canme from an accounting
per specti ve.

Representative Wl son pointed to pages 16 and 17 of the CS.
She wondered why the CBR was in Section 9 and the Hi gher
Education Investnment Fund was in Section 10. She wondered
if the bill intended that the H gher Education |nvestnment
Fund would be utilized in addition to the CBR with the
three-quarter vote (and that no other funds would be
considered). She was trying to understand why the Hi gher
Education Investnment Fund was nanmed in the |egislation, but
no ot her accounts were included.

M. Teal replied that the | anguage pertaining to the Hi gher
Education Investnent Fund had been included in the
conference conmttee budget and only referred to FY 15. He
explained that the FY 15 budget was approxinmately $3.8
billion; the Statutory Budget Reserve (SBR) of about $2.8
billion filled all but roughly $1 billion of the deficit.
By reducing the FY 15 deposit to the public education fund,
the remaining $1 billion deficit would be filled and
theoretically elimnated the need for a supermgjority vote
to access CBR funds. However, under the scenario, the state

would still be within $50 million of a deficit. He spoke to
the volatility of oil prices and that accounting books were
not actually closed until nonths after a year was conpl ete.

He did not believe $50 million was a |arge enough cushion
to promse no deficit in FY 15. Section 10 stated "if, and
only if" there were insufficient general funds, the
remaining deficit would be taken from the H gher Education
| nvest ment Fund; the option would go into effect only if
the CBR vote failed to ensure that the state did not run
out of noney in FY 15.

11: 04: 19 AM

Representative Gara stated that he did not want people to
be scaring the public with the current conversation. He
reasoned that everything would be fine if the |egislature
decided to work across party lines on devel oping a budget
by the end of special session. He thought it would be a
shane if legislators were not able to work together and
began to ask about getting to Septenber.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 8 04/ 29/ 15 10:38 A M



Representative Pruitt interjected his distaste for the
"political statenents.” He stated that the committee was
trying to handl e a budget.

11: 04: 54 AM
AT EASE

11: 05: 11 AM
RECONVENED

Representative Gara asked for verification that to maintain
a budget through Septenber and possibly Novenber, there
would be no need to touch the PCE Fund or the Al aska
Per manent Fund earnings reserve. M. Teal replied in the
affirmative.

Representative Pruitt asked if there was any nechanism the
state could enploy to borrow fromitself in order to help
fund governnent. For instance, borrowing fromthe PCE Fund,
the Hi gher Education Investnent Fund, or CBR He wondered
if borrowing the funds would have to be authorized by the
| egi sl ature.

M. Teal replied that the state could borrow from itself
He believed DOR and DOA were researching borrow ng fromthe
other funds. The state could also borrow from markets by
i ssuing revenue anticipation notes, which was short-term
borrowi ng based on anticipated revenue comng in later in
the year. He pointed to Section 9(c) at the top of page 17
that talked about using earnings from the general fund to
pay the CBR, the I|anguage was typical and allowed the
| egislature to borrow noney from the CBR without a three-
gquarter vote; it would be required to be repaid by the end
of the year or it becane a draw. Alternatively, the
| egi sl ature could choose to borrow fromthe CBR and not run
out of noney, but at sonme point in the fiscal year the
noney had to be paid back. The people allowing the
borrowi ng would be required to certify that funds would be
avail able to pay the noney back. He communicated that wth
a deficit there was no guaranteed way of paying back the
loans to the CBR He stated that even though Section 9(c)
was a sinple-ngjority provision, it would not do any good
unl ess the super-majority vote was obtai ned.

Representative Pruitt asked if the |egislature could borrow

from the subaccounts of the general fund (i.e. PCE Fund
H gher Education Investnment Fund, and others).

House Fi nance Conmmittee 9 04/ 29/ 15 10:38 A M



M. Teal replied that even if the nobney was appropriated
there would still be a $1.5 billion to $1.6 billion
deficit. At that point there would be no remaining funds to
borrow from

Representative Pruitt understood the situation as it
related to the next fiscal year. He specified that he was
referring to the discussion related to the current fisca
year where the state could be $50 million short. He asked
if there would be a potential to cover the state expenses
wi t hout going into the CBR by accessing the subaccounts.

M . Teal replied t hat t he scenario out|ined by
Representative Pruitt was exactly what Section 10 did. The
section would take the noney from the H gher Education
| nvestnent Fund if the state was short on funds. It would
have also been feasible to include the PCE Fund or others
in the |anguage; however, the remining deficit was
expected to be less than $100 million; therefore, there was
no need to dip into other funds.

11:10: 24 AM

Co-Chair Neuman noted that the |egislature would not want
to make the funds available if it did not have to.

Representative Pruitt discussed that if the legislature
took funds from the Hi gher Education Investnment Fund, it
woul d i npact the fund, which would also be the case if the
PCE Fund or other were used. He detailed that the |anguage
in the CS was a policy call, which specified the npney
woul d be appropriated versus borrowed.

M. Teal replied that the scenario was the sane either way.
He elaborated that the CS included an appropriation from
the fund and if the noney had to be taken from the Hi gher
Education Investnment Fund, the legislature could opt to
repl eni sh the noney. He stated that it was also possible to
say that the interest generated by the fund was nore than
sufficient to pay the scholarships and grants it awarded; a
bal ance of $50 mllion to $60 million less would still
allow paynent of +the grants and scholarships. If the
| egislature chose to borrow the funds, it may choose to
repay or not repay the funds at sone future date.

11:12: 14 AM

House Fi nance Conmmittee 10 04/ 29/ 15 10:38 A M



Vice-Chair Saddler referred to the discussion about revenue
anticipation notes. He was interested in further detail
including potential source, interest rate, cost, and
aut hori zation procedure.

M. Teal replied that the scenario would entail going to
the financial markets and issuing short-term notes based on
anticipated revenue. The interest rate should be fairly
| ow. For exanple, an issuance of $2 billion in notes at a 2
percent rate for one year would be a $40 mllion borrow ng
cost. He stated that it would be nuch easier to issue
t axabl e revenue anticipation notes and state would run into
problens with the federal governnment if it tried to make
the notes tax-free. He explained that the notes did not
need to be tax-free; the difference between the tax-free
and taxable interest rate was quite small. He stressed that
the cost of issuing the notes was not insignificant.
However, issuing notes was not an uncommon and it woul d not
mean credit raters would determne Alaska was in a "world
of hurt."” He believed the Minicipality of Anchorage issued
revenue anticipation notes. Additionally, the state issued
the short-term drinking and clean water bonds annually.
There was nothing inherently wong about the use of revenue
anticipation notes. He believed that credit raters would
probably |l ook at a political inpasse as an indication of a
greater credit risk t han borrow ng W th revenue
anticipation notes. He explained that the credit raters saw
Al aska's credit strength partially in its ability to access
reserves. The raters took many things into account when
determning a state's credit rating.

11:15: 20 AM

Vi ce- Chai r Saddl er asked for verification that t he
inability for the legislature to obtain the three-quarter
vote would inpair the state's credit rating. M. Teal
affirmed that he believed the situation would inpact the
credit raters' opinions.

Vice-Chair Saddler asked if the revenue anticipated notes
were |limted to one-year lifespans. M. Teal replied that
the notes were issued in anticipation of revenue comng in
|ater and nust be repaid within 18 nonths; the notes did
not have to be paid off exactly at the end of the year.

House Fi nance Committee 11 04/ 29/ 15 10:38 A M



Representative Quttenberg spoke to the economc and credit
rating risk related to the failure to achieve a super-
majority vote [to access CBR funds]. He wondered if there
were other things at risk if the state's funds were
i naccessible. He surmsed that the state would not be able
to issue revenue anticipation bonds given that it did not
expect to see sufficient funds conming in the follow ng
year .

M. Teal replied that the revenue anticipation could always
be issued as long as incomng revenue was anticipated. He
did not know of any other itens at risk. He qualified that
there could be other risks he was not aware of.

Representative Quttenberg speculated that issuing revenue
anticipation bonds would increase the size of the deficit
the following year. M. Teal replied that the anticipated
revenue would be current-year revenue. He affirned that the
interest would increase the state's fiscal problem because
borrowi ng noney was not free; it may cost $20 mllion to
$40 mllion.

Co- Chair Neuman surm sed that the state did not want to get
i nto borrow ng noney.

11:18: 24 AM

Vice-Chair Saddler believed M. Teal had stated that
failing to cone to an agreenment on using CBR funds could
potentially hurt the state's credit rating. M. Teal
affirmed that he believed so. He stated there would be
anot her opportunity to provide funding for the state
outside of the operating budget bill. He stated that the
i ssue was nore about whether the legislature was able to
work things out, which was probably all that mattered in
t he end.

Represent ati ve Edgnon asked for the total drawdown from the
state's savings accounts given the $3.2 billion deficit in
FY 16. Additionally, the legislature had used $2.8 billion
from the SBR, plus $1 billion from the education fund. He
wonder ed how nmuch of the savings accounts had been used. He
stated that sonetines he saw savings accounts as the CBR
and SBR fund.

M. Teal replied that the deficit for FY 15 was roughly
$3.8 billion and the deficit for FY 16 was roughly $3.2

House Fi nance Committee 12 04/ 29/ 15 10:38 A M



billion ($7 billion total for the two years). He detailed
that funding included $2.8 billion fromthe SBR, $1 billion
from the public education fund, and theoretically the
remai nder fromthe CBR

Representati ve Edgnon asked what the spending would | eave
in savings. M. Teal believed it was roughly $6 billion in
the CBR The public education fund would be enpty at the
end of FY 16 and the SBR would be enpty. The only reserve
account would be the supermajority access to the CBR

Representati ve Edgnon surm sed that avail able savings would
be the amount from the CBR plus the subaccounts, which
woul d be sonmewhere close to $8 billion. He noted that he
woul d not chose to use earnings from the Al aska Pernmanent
Fund and did not include it in his estimation of avail able
f unds.

M. Teal replied that LFD had |ooked at the reserves as
those in the SBR and CBR The LFD nodel showed that after
FY 16 the CBR may get the state through about two nore
years and woul d be enpty after FY 18.

Representative Edgnon asked for verification that there
were approximately $7.6 billion in liquid savings accounts
going forward. M. Teal replied in the affirmative,
i ncl udi ng the PCE Fund.

11: 23: 18 AM

Representative Gara stated that there had been roughly $100
or so mllion for the Al aska Marine H ghway System (AVHS)
in the conference commttee budget. He asked how the figure
conpared to the allocation in the CS. M. Teal replied that
an additional $7 mllion had been added back to the AMHS
budget in the budget before the commttee.

Co-Chair Neuman remarked on the total AMHS appropriation.
M. Teal stated that the appropriation was around $130
mllion.

Co-Chair Neunman stated that $130 mllion to $140 million
had been the total appropriation to AWVHS. The CS added
another $7 mllion.

Representative Gara stated that the conference conmttee
budget had included AMHS fuel trigger noney that other

House Fi nance Conmmittee 13 04/ 29/ 15 10:38 A M



agencies could not use. He asked if the fuel trigger noney
was also included in the CS. He asked for verification that
the difference between the budgets was $7 mllion.

M. Ecklund replied that there was roughly $130 mllion to
$140 mllion between the marine highway fund (approximtely
one-third) and UG- (approximately two-thirds). In FY 15
there was roughly $5 mllion in fuel trigger noney that
could go to the marine highway fund and could be used in FY
16.

M. Teal clarified that the fuel trigger revenue was FY 15
noney that would be carried forward into FY 16. Separately,
the CS contained an additional $7 mllion.

HB 1001 was HEARD and HELD in commttee for further
consi derati on.

#
ADJ QURNVENT

11: 25: 54 AM

The neeting was adjourned at 11:25 a. m

House Fi nance Committee 14 04/ 29/ 15 10:38 A M



